United Nations Conference on the Elimination or Reduction of Future
Statelessness

Geneva, 1959 and New York, 1961

Document:-
A/CONF.9/SR.4

Summary Records, 4" Plenary meeting

Copyright © United Nations
2009



UNITED NATIONS =

Disvr.
GENERALL

A/CONP.9/SR.4
24 hpril 1961

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

Original: ENILISH

UNITED NATIOHS CONFERENCE ON THE
ELIuINAYION CR REDUCTION OF FUTURE STATELESSNESS

SUMMARY RECURD OF THE FUURTH PLEHARY »ERETING

held av the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 26 warch 1952, at 10.U5 a.m.

President: Mr. LARSEN (Denmark)
Executive Secretary:s Mr. LIAVG

Examination of the question of the elimination or reduction of
future statelessness (item 7 of the agenda) (continued)

Draft conventinn on the reduction of future statelessness
(continued)

Article 1 (continued)

A list of government represeniatives and observers and of representotives of
specialized agencies and of intergovernmental and non-govermnmental organizations
attending the Conference was issued as document 4i/CCHF.9/9.

4 list of documents »ertaining to the Conference was issued as document
4/CONF.9/L.79.

GE.61-4493
61-11591

(8 p.)

e



./CONF.9/3R.4
age 2

ZAWINAT (ON OF THE QUESTICON OF THE ELIMINATION CR REDUCTION OF FUTURE STATELESSNESS
item 7 of the agenda) (continued)

rat’ convention on the veduction of fubure statelessness (A/CCWF.9/L.1) (continued)

rhicle 1 (4/00NF.S/L.2, L,4, L.5/Rev.l, L.6) (continued)

Lir. HUBERT (Frence) said that in its efforts to draw up a convention on
‘he reduction of future statelessness the Conference must bear in mind the legitimate
concern of every State thet all those to whom it granted nationality should be linked
b0 iv as loval citizens.

ilis Government preferred the International Law Commission's draft convention on
the reéuction of Ffuture siatelessness to its draft on the elimination of future
statelessness (4/CONF.9/L.1) because it was not too rigid. Lxrticle 1 of the former
crait, however, was not completely satvisfactory, and his delegation had submitted an
emendment (A/CONF.9/L.5/Rev.i). The solution suggested in tho amendment was based
on Franch law, under which a child born in France of foreign or stateless parents
noricliy acquired French nationality at the age of twenty-one, provided tha’s he had
resided in France for the precsding five years. He could refuse French nobtionality
only if he could prove that he hed another nationality. He could acquire French
naticnality at the age of sixteecn upon request, provided he had complied with the
conditions of residence, and before that age upon such a request being made by his
parents or guasrdians.

v, SIVAN (Isrmel) said that, in supporting paragraph 1 of the article, his
delegation was fully awarc that accession to a coanvention containing such a provision
would ertail in due course supplementing the existing legislation of Israel. It
shared the preference for puracraph 1 of the representative of Italy, which was also
belleVEQ that practical, moral and psychological importance atiached to nationality
not only in the case of adults but also in that of children and young people. Any
purported solution that was not based on the attribution of nationality at birth
could not possibly be compatible with the principle proclaimed in the Universal
Declaration of Human Righus that everyone had the right to a mabtionality.

Morsover, as pointed oub in paragrenh 136 of the reportv of the International
Law Commission on its fifth session (4/2456), the operation of article 1 would, for
most practical purposes, be limited to persons born of stateless persons. That wes
an additional argument for the jus Egli solution of that particular problem, which

would prevent perpetuation of statelessness by descent - particularly since it



A/CONF.G/57 4
page 3

~ptailed no impairment of the operation of the jus sanguinis rule in its normal

spplication in the States concerned to the children of their nationals, wherever
yorn, and to non-nationals born in their territory if they acquired another
wabionality.

The alternative to paragraph 1, submitted by the Belgian delegation
(A/CONF.9/L.2), and the Danish delegation's proposal (A/CONF.9/L.6), did not appear
to provide & sufficiently comprehensive solution of the problem before the
lonference.

Taragraphs 2 and 3 should be omitted, as in the draft convention on the
elimi:ation of future statelessness, because they introduced too many complications
an? wazertainties. The discrimination between father and mother did not commend
itsolf to his delegation, because the Israel Women's Equal Rights Act was opposed
to gueh discrimination.

If the Conference were unable to adopt paragraph 1 above, his delegation would
pre’sT & solution more on the lines of the United Kingdom amendment (4/CONF.9/L.4),
but % wished to defer consideration of that amendment until the apprepriate stage
of the debate.

Mr. CARASALLES (4rgentina) said that as the Argentine nationality law was
baced on jus soli his delegation had no difficulty in accepting paragraph 1 as
drafted,; but would prefer paragraphs 2 and 3 to be deleted. However, in order to

meet the wishes of those countries whose laws were based on jus sanguinis, his

delegation would not oppose the retention of paragraphs 2 and 3.

With Tegard to the amendments submitted, the Argentine delegation could accept
those proposed by the United Kingdom delegation, but would have difficulty in
accepting those of Denmark and Belgium. He shared the views expressed by the
representatives of Italy and the United Kingdom at the previous meeting that it was
of paramount importance that a2 child should have a nationality at birth. In that
connexion, his delegation also supported article 15 of the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights and wished %o emphasize the psychological importance of s child
acquiring a nationality at birth and of knowing that he would have the right to
keep it when he reached his majority, provided he complied with certain conditions.

br. CALAMARI (Penema) said that, while agreeing with the general spirit
of the Belgian amendment (4/CONF.9/L.2), his delegation considered that a child
should have attained his majority or be at least eighteen years of age and be fully

aware of his rights and duties as a citizen before he was granted the right to



A/CONF.9/SR.4
page 4

acquire the nationality of the party in whose territory he had been born. An
explanation of what was meant by "simplified procedure" should be written into the
article. It might teke the form of a request submitted to the competent authori-
ties by the applicant, together with proof that he had become integrated into the
life of the State concerned, knew its language and had some knowledge of its
geography, history and political organization.

The rights of the State granting a person nationality must be safeguarded.
The problems raised by article 1 might perhaps be solved if paragraph 1 provided
that a person who would otherwise be stateless should acquire at birth the
nationality of the State or territory in which he was born, provided his father or
mother applied to the competent authorities within, say, sixty days of his birth.

Vhile supporting the first part of the United Kingdom amendment (A/CONF.9/L.4),
his delegation thought that the question of illegitimate persons should not be
mentioned; in Panama no distinction was made in their case where nationality was
concerned. Paragraph 3 (b) of the United Kingdom amendment should be amended to
provide that the child should acquire the nationality of the parent who was not
stateless or who had the nationality of one of the parties to the convention.

The Danish amendment (4/CONF.9/L.6) seemed logical, but proof should be
required that the child hkad some ties with the country whose nationality he wished
to take.

Mr. IRGENS (Norway) said that the Norwegian Government considered that
there should be some ties between a stateless person and the country whose
nationality he wished to acguire. That view was particularly well met by the
Danish amendment (A/CONF.9/L.6), which his delegation supported, although it might
entail some amendment of Norwegian law.

The idea that nationality, once granted to a person, might be withdrawn at a
certain age was not acceptable.

Mr. UEHTA (India) said that the Indian citizenship laws enacted in 1955,
which corresponded to the article, provided that every person born in India, except
the child of an enemy alien born in a place then occupied by the enemy, should be &
citizen of India by birth. On attaining full age, such a person could renounce
Indian citizenship, provided that he was a citizen or national of another country.
Under snother provision, a person born outside India was regarded as a citizen of
India by descent if his father was a citizen of India at the time of his birth.

It would thus be seen that in most cases Indian citizenship laws had been so framed



A/COSF.2/CR .4
paze 5

that statelessness was avoided. The Indian delegation would therefore have no
dgifficulty in accepting the article, either as it stood or comsisting of
paragraph 1 only.

Mr. TYABJI (Pekistan) said that his delegation could accept paragraph 1,
gince it did not conflict with the Pakistan Citizenship Act No. II of 1951, which
was based on the principle of jus soli. There would be no objection to paragraphs
2 and 3 if other States wished to impose such restrictioms.

Ee could not support the Belgian amendment, which detracted from the effective-
ness of the article. The United Kingdom emendment was acceptable, but it was
essential that the convention should be really effective,

lr. SAFWAT (United Arab Republic), after observing that he had listened
to the statements of the United Kingdom and Swiss representatives with special
interest, said that in view of the United Arab Republic's problem of over-population
his delegation could not accept paragraph 1 as drafted. It provided that a person
who would otherwise be stateless should acquire at birth the nationality of the
party in whose territory he was born, whereas under the United Arab Republic
Nationality Act of 1958 in order to acquire nationality a stateless person must
reside in the territory of the Republic from birth until the age of twenty-one and
mist fulfil certain other conditions. However, under the same Act a child born in
the United Arab Republic of unknown parents automatically became a citizen of that
country. One of the chief causes of statelessness had thus already been eliminated
in the United Arab Republic.

Mr. WILLFORT (Austria) said that Austria was a country of asylum for

refugees and its laws were based on the principle of jus sanguinis. Hernce, for

the reasons given by the representative of Switzerland at the second meeting, a
convention based on jus soli could not be accepted by the Austrian Government.

Austria had proved by its actions that it sympathized with the couse of the
refugees and the stateless. Since 1945, approximately 1.5 million refugees had
either passed through Austria or received temporary asylum there and large numbers
5till remzined in the country. Some 350,000 persons - about 5 per cent of the
total population of the country - had been granted Austrian citizenship since 1945.

liis delegation was prepared to consider the amendments submitted by the
delegations of Denmark, Belgium and France, but it shared the hesitations expressed
by certain other delegations regarding the setting up of a special agency and

tould not accept the idea of provisional citizenship, which it considered to be a



A/COFP.9/SR.4
page 6

source of statelessness. Austrian legislation contained every possible provision
to prevent statelessness and an Austrian citizen could not be deprived of his
nationality. Ile would suggest that article 1 should recormmend governmentis to
avoid including in their legislation clauses on provisional citizenship.

Mrs. TAUCHE (Federal Republic of Germany) said that the situation in her
country was similar to that of Austria. Her delegation could accept the Danish
and French amendments but not article 1 as drafted by the International Law
Commission.

Rev. Father de RIEDMATTEN (Holy See) szid that lie had not yet fully
considered the various amendments submitted, but would urge that a text acceptable
to the majority of States should be aimed at. The Danish amendment was logical.
Was there any existing convention which weuld safeguard a stateless child who had
not acquired a nationality at birth from suffering from the disadvantages of state-
lessness?

lir. HERMENT (Belgium) said that such a child would be covered by the
provisions of the 1954 Convention relating to the Status of Stateless FPersons.

Replying to the representative of Panama, he said that the age of fifteen or
sixteen had been suggested in the Belgian amendment because it was generally at
that age thet a child's future was plaanned.

With regard to the suggestion in the Belgian amendment that a simplified
procedure should be followed, it might certainly include an application to the
competent authorities. The conditions under which nationality would be granted
should be determined by the State concerned. They might be included in the
article together with the reasons for refusing 4o grant nationality. Such
reasons should be few, however.

Mr., KUDO (Japan) said that although his country's nationelity laws were

based on jus sanguinis they did contain some elements of jus soli and his

Government would be happy to subscribe to a convention which represented a combina-
tion of the two principles.
With regard to article 1, his delegation approved of the texit of paragraph 1,
but would suggest the deletion of paregraphs 2 and 3.
The PRESIDENT said that it was clear from the discussion that a compromise
would have to be reached between the wishes of States anxious to preserve their
existing nationaelity laws and the aspirations of those who adopted a more liberal

attitude towards nationality. The revised amendment submitted by the French



A/CCER . /5R.4
page 7

delegation might well provide the basis for agreement and the Conference would wish
to examine its effects and consequences very carefully.

Mr. CALAMARI {Panema) expressed his delegation's appreciation of the
Belgian representative's readiness to include a more precise definition of the term
"gimplified procedure”.

Mr. FAVRE (Switzerland) said that mention had been made of article 15 of
the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, which provided that "everyone has a
right to a nationality", and the inference had been drawn that the exercise of that
fundamental human right must entail the application of jus soli. But that
principle should be invoked against countries whose laws permitted the creation of
cases of statelessness. Swiss nationality law had not created a single case of
statelessness.

Some delegations had suggested that the most logical course would be to adopt
paragraph 1 without paragraphs 2 and 3, It would indeed be logical for immigration
countries, but it certainly would not be so for countries in Central Europe which
had received a large number of refugees and required some more precise regulation
of nationality questions.

It had also been said that it was essential to give a child a nationality at
birth, to which he would reply that a nationality should not be imposed on those who
did not want it. There were many refugees, in his own country and others, who did
not went their children to take the nationality of the country ir which they were
born, and in such cases it was vital ‘o ensure that the individual's wishes were
respected. The United Kingdom amendmenv went some way towards doing so.

The Danish amendment introduced the idea of assimilation of a person intvo & new
country and proposed thz establishment of an objective criterion of residence for a
certain period. That idea was unguestionably interesting, but by itself was
probably inadequate for his own country, and the Panamenian representative's
Suggestion that there should be additional criteria such as knowledge of the
language, customs and laws of the country concerned was welcome.

The discussion seemed to have reached a point where the jus soli countries
were declaring that they themselves had no nationality problems and that 211 that
was needed to solve the problem of statelessness was an amendment of existing law

in the jus sanguinis countries. But how should the existing laws be altered?

The proposals put forward by the French, United Kingdom, Belgian, Danish and

Panamanian delegations were all valuable contributions to the Conference's work,



4/CONF.9/SR.4
page 8

but each differed slightly from the other. Some effort must be made to iron out

those differences so that the jus sanguinis countries could confront the jus soli

countries with a single text representing the maximum concessions that the former
could offer. He was not proposing that solution as an instrument of blackmail but
28 the only means of reaching agreement without delay.

Mr. HELLBERG (Sweden) said that his preference went to the Danish amend-
ment. It would, if adopted, necessitate some changes in his country's laws, but
the Swedish Parliament would probably be prepared to do so. The Norwegian
representative's comments on the French proposals were well-founded and the revised
French amendment might well form the basis for a compromise satisfactory to all.
The French proposal to fix an age limit beyond which statelessness would not be
tolerated represented great progress.

Mr. DE SOIGNIE (Spain) agreed that the revised French amendment would
probably provide a satisfactory compromise between the reduction of future state-
lessness in general and preservetion of continuity in the national laws of individual
countries,

lir. HERMENT (Belgium) said that his delegation would follow up the Swiss

representative's proposal by suggesting that an informal meeting of jus sanguinis

countries be held to draft a unified text with which they could then confront the
Jus soli countries.

The PRESIDENT endorsed that suggestioun.

Mr. BACCIETITI (Italy) moved, under rule 18 of the rules of procedure, that
the meeting be adjourned.

Mr. PRESIDENT put the motion to the vote.

The motion for adjournment was carried by 16 votes to 2, with 13 abstentions.

The meeting rose at 12,5 p.m.






